
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Syracuse City  
Planning Commission Meeting 

April 2, 2019 
Begins at 6:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers  

1979 West 1900 South, Syracuse, UT 84075 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTE 
If you wish to attend a particular agenda item, please arrive at the beginning of the meeting. In compliance with the Americans  
Disabilities Act, those needing auxiliary communicative aids and services for this meeting should contact the City Office, at 801-614-9626, at least      
48 hours prior to the meeting.  
 
Meetings of the Syracuse Planning Commission may be conducted via electronic means pursuant to Utah Code Ann. §52-4-207. In such circumstances  
contact will be established and maintained via electronic means and the meeting will be conducted pursuant to the Rules, Policies and Procedures 
established by the Governing Body for electronic meetings. 
 
 
CERTIFICATE OF POSTING  
This agenda was posted on the Syracuse City Hall Notice Boards, the State Public Notice website at http://www.utah.gov/pmn/index.html, and the 
Syracuse City website at http://www.syracuseut.com. 
 
 
 
 

1. Meeting Called to Order 
• Invocation or Thought by Commissioner Rackham     
• Pledge of Allegiance by Commissioner Thorson 
• Adoption of Meeting Agenda 
 

2. Meeting Minutes  
• March 19, 2019 Regular Meeting and Work Session 

 
3. Public Comment, this is an opportunity to address the Planning Commission regarding your 

concerns or ideas, regarding items that have not been scheduled for a public hearing on this 
agenda. Please limit your comments to three minutes. 

 

4. Public Hearing – Request from Utah Land Surveying for a Subdivision Amendment 
called Cherry Village Subdivision No 1 Amended 1, approx. 0.49 acres located 2262 W 
1825 S  

 

5. Public Hearing – Proposed Text Amendment to §10.80 Cluster Subdivision (Major 
Conditional Use)  

 

6. Public Hearing – Engineering Standards Update 
 

7. Final Plat – Legend Pointe Subdivision Phase 1, located approx. 900 S 3695 W  
 

8. Adjourn 
 

PLANNING  
COMMISSIONERS 

 

CH AI R 
Bret t  Cragun 

 
V ICE CH AI R 

Larry Johnson 
 

Curt  McCuis t ion  
Greg Day 

Dale Rackham 
Grant  Thorson  
Ralph Vaughan 
G.  Ivy Ruelan  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1. Department Business 
a. City Council Liaison Report 
b. City Attorney Updates 
c. Upcoming Agenda Items 

2. Discussion Items 
a. Vision 2050 Discussion 

3. Commissioner Reports 
4. Adjourn 

 
 

 

Work Session 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
 

http://www.utah.gov/pmn/index.html
http://www.syracuseut.com/


Agenda Item # 2 Meeting Minutes 

• March 19, 2019 Regular Meeting and Work Session

PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA 
April 2, 2019



Minutes of the Syracuse Planning Commission Regular Meeting, March19, 2019 
 

22 | P a g e  

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Syracuse City Planning Commission held on March 19, 2019, at 6:00 p.m., in the 1 
Council Chambers, 1979 West 1900 South, Syracuse City, Davis County, Utah. 2 
 3 
Present:  Commission Members:  Brett Cragun, Chair  4 

Larry Johnson, Vice Chair 5 
     Curt McCuistion 6 

   Greg Day 7 
   Ralph Vaughan 8 
   Dale Rackham 9 
   Gretchen Ivy Ruelan 10 

               11 
City Employees:  Noah Steele, Community & Economic Development Director 12 
   Royce Davies, Planner 13 

Heather Davies, Administrative Professional 14 
Paul Roberts, City Attorney 15 
Brian Bloeman, City Engineer 16 
Jo Hamblin, Deputy Fire Chief 17 

    18 
City Council:  Councilwoman Corrine Bolduc 19 
             20 
Excused:  Grant Thorson  21 
    22 
Visitors:    Derek Terry 23 
 24 

 25 
 26 
6:02:56 PM  27 
1. Meeting Called to Order:  28 

Chair Cragun called the meeting to order.  Commissioner Day provided an invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance was 29 
led by Commissioner Vaughan.  30 

6:04:14 PM 31 
With the absence of Commissioner Thorson, Commissioner Ruelan is an alternate who will be voting. 32 

COMMISSIONER VAUGHAN MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT THE PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA FOR THE 33 
MARCH 19, 2019 MEETING AGENDA. THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER JOHNSON. ALL WERE 34 
IN FAVOR, THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  35 

6:05:03 PM 36 
2. Meeting Minutes:  37 

COMMISSIONER VAUGHAN MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE MEETING MINUTES FOR BOTH FEBRUARY 38 
19, 2019 REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION AND MARCH 5, 2019 REGULAR MEETING AND WORK 39 
SESSION. COMMISSIONER DAY SECONDS THE MOTION. ALL IN FAVOR, THE MOTION PASSES 40 
UNANIMOUSLY. 41 

6:05:57 PM 42 
3. Public Comment: This is an opportunity to address the Planning Commission regarding your concerns or ideas, 43 

regarding items that have not been scheduled for a public hearing on this agenda. Please limit your comments to three 44 
minutes.  45 
Open public comment.  46 

6:06:28 PM 47 
Close public comment. 48 

6:06:34 PM 49 
4. Public Hearing – Request from Woodside Homes for a Site Plan called Still Water Clubhouse, located 1793 W Ash 50 

Drive 51 
Mr. Royce Davies, City Planner, shares with the Commission the site plan that Woodside Homes has provided. This 52 
Clubhouse is an opt in only for the existing Still Water developments. There are still some Engineering comments that 53 
have yet to be addressed in regard to Storm Water. Staff recommends conditional approval. 54 

6:12:40 PM 55 
Mr. Derek Terry, the applicant, shares that he is in contact with the City Engineer and is will be adjusting his plans to meet 56 
the engineer’s comments. 57 

6:13:29 PM 58 
Commissioner Vaughan questions Mr. Terry as to whether or not there is direct access from the trail to the Clubhouse. 59 
Mr. Terry shares that there is keycard access to the Clubhouse, and it will be HOA maintained. Mr. Vaughan questions 60 
the security of the facility and how to maintain “jumpers” from accessing the Clubhouse.  61 

6:16:59 PM 62 
Open Public Hearing. 63 

ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;


Minutes of the Syracuse Planning Commission Regular Meeting, March19, 2019 
 

23 | P a g e  

6:17:16 PM 64 
Close Public Hearing. 65 

6:17:26 PM 66 
Commissioner Vaughan questions how to address the security in those who don’t have access to the Clubhouse as 67 

well as general pool safety requirements.  68 
6:20:04 PM 69 

Chair Cragun asks a legal question to the City Attorney. 70 
6:20:34 PM 71 

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON MOVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION TO APPROVE THE REQUEST OF 72 
WOODSIDE HOMES OF UTAH LLC FOR A RESIDENTIAL CLUBHOUSE SITE PLAN LOCATED AT 1793 W ASH DRIVE IN 73 
THE RPC RESIDENTIAL ZONE WITH THE CONDITION THAT STAFF COMMENTS BE ADDRESSED. COMMISSIONER 74 
MCCUISTION SECONDED THE MOTION. THIS MOTION PASSES 7-0 VOTE. 75 
6:21:25 PM 76 
5. Adjourn 77 

COMMISSIONER DAY MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN TO WORK SESSION. COMMISSIONER RACKHAM 78 
SECONDED THE MOTION. ALL WERE IN FAVOR, THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  79 

 80 
 81 
 82 

 83 
 84 

__________________________________  __________________________________   85 
Brett Cragun, Chairman    Commission Secretary 86 
Date Approved: ________________ 87 

ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;


Minutes of the Syracuse Planning Commission Work Session, March 19, 2019                  
 

24 | P a g e  
 

Minutes of the Syracuse City Planning Commission Work Session held on March 19, 2019, at 6:00 p.m., in the Council 1 
Chambers, 1979 West 1900 South, Syracuse City, Davis County, Utah. 2 
 3 
Present:  Commission Members: Brett Cragun, Chair  4 

Larry Johnson, Vice Chair 5 
     Curt McCuistion 6 
     Greg Day  7 

   Ralph Vaughan 8 
   Dale Rackham 9 
   G. Ivy Ruelan 10 
            11 
City Employees:  Noah Steele, Community & Economic Development Director 12 
   Royce Davies, Planner 13 

Heather Davies, Administrative Professional 14 
   Paul Roberts, City Attorney 15 
   Brian Bloeman, City Engineer 16 
   Jo Hamblin, Deputy Fire Chief 17 
           18 

 City Council:  Councilwoman Corrine Bolduc 19 
      20 
Excused:    Grant Thorson 21 
           22 
Visitors:     23 
 24 
 25 
 26 

 27 
6:23:10 PM 28 

Chair Cragun starts the Work Session. 29 
6:23:23 PM 30 
1. Department Business: 31 

a.  City Council Liaison Report  32 
Councilwoman Bolduc shares: 33 

• The Council has come to some consensus with the PRD Zone 34 
• The sell of the house on 500 W was approved as well as the road expansion of that same road 35 

6:24:33 PM 36 
b.  City Attorney Updates  37 
 Paul Roberts, City Attorney, stated that he has nothing. 38 

6:24:39 PM 39 
c. Upcoming Agenda Items 40 
 Mr. Davies shares the following items are as follows: 41 

• Cherry Village Plat Amendment 42 
• Hunter’s Glen Phase 1 Final Plat – with a name change 43 
• Cluster Subdivision ordinance potentially 44 
• Vision 2050 Meetings 45 

6:26:11 PM 46 
2. Discussion Items:  47 

a. Proposed Text Amendment to Syracuse Code 10.80 Cluster Subdivision (Major Conditional Use) 48 
Mr. Noah Steele, Community Economic Development Director, shares that currently the Cluster Subdivision is a 49 
Major Conditional Use on top of the R-1 Zone. Mr. Steele reads through the draft ordinance amendments. 50 

6:33:13 PM 51 
Commissioner Vaughan approves of the changes. Commissioner Rackham shares some concerns for the conditional 52 
use within that zone. There is discussion as to what the Commission would like removed/added to the text. 53 

6:37:09 PM 54 
Commissioner Ruelan gives comments on the potbellied pigs. There is more discussion as to what to keep or remove 55 
from the proposed text amendments. There is discussion as to Minor/Major Home Occupation. Move to Public 56 
Hearing for next meeting. 57 

7:09:49 PM 58 
3. Commissioner Reports 59 

Commissioner Vaughan shares information on the West Davis Corridor meeting that was held tonight at this same 60 
time as this meeting. Commissioner Vaughan shares concerns for Staff and the Planning Commission not being in 61 
attendance for that meeting. 62 

ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;
ftr://?location=&quot;S&quot;?date=&quot;17-Jan-2017&quot;?position=&quot;19:51:55&quot;?Data=&quot;17c403f5&quot;


Minutes of the Syracuse Planning Commission Work Session, March 19, 2019                  
 

25 | P a g e  
 

7:11:40 PM 63 
4. Adjourn 64 

 COMMISSIONER RACKHAM MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN. COMMISSIONER JOHNSON SECONDED THE 65 
MOTION. ALL WERE IN FAVOR. MOTION PASSES UNANIMOUSLY. 66 



Agenda Item # 3 Public Comment: 

This is an opportunity to address the Planning 
Commission regarding your concerns or ideas, regarding 
items that have not been scheduled for a public hearing 
on this agenda. Please limit your comments to three 
minutes. 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA 
April 2, 2019



ADMINISTRATIVE ITEM 

Agenda Item # 4 Cherry Village Phase 1 Amendment 1 

Factual Summation 
Please review the following information. Any questions regarding this agenda item may 

be directed to Royce Davies, City Planner or Noah Steele, Planning Services Director.  

Location: 2262 West 1825 South 

Current Zoning: R-2

General Plan:  R-2

Total Subdivision Area: 0.49 Acres

Number of Lots: 1

Summary 

The applicant has requested approval of an amendment to his lot that will extend the rear 

property line to the north approximately 108 feet. The property owner to the north is selling 

property to make this possible. Because the applicant’s property is in a platted subdivision, the 

amendment is being brought before the Planning Commission for approval. The lot to the north 

is a meets and bounds lot and as such, is not being included in the plat. 

While most of the staff comments were addressed in this iteration of the plat, some comments 

still remain. 

No new lots are being created in this plat. 

Recommendation 

Because there are outstanding staff comments on the plat and the comments do not substantially 

change any parts of the plat, staff recommends it be conditionally approved. 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING  
April 2, 2019



Suggested Motion Language 

 

Approval – “I move the Planning Commission approve the request of Adam Arnell for approval 

of a subdivision plat amendment called Cherry Village No. 1 Amendment 1 at 2262 West 1825 

South in the R-2 Zone with the following condition: 

1. All staff comments shall be addressed before the plat is recorded with Davis County. 

 

Table – “I move the Planning Commission continue the request of Adam Arnell for approval of 

a subdivision plat amendment called Cherry Village No. 1 Amendment 1 at 2262 West 1825 

South in the R-2 Zone until (give date) based on the following findings: 

1. (list findings)” 

 

Denial – “I move the Planning Commission deny the request of Adam Arnell for approval of a 

subdivision plat amendment called Cherry Village No. 1 Amendment 1 at 2262 West 1825 South 

in the R-2 Zone based on the following findings: 

1. (list findings).” 

 

Attachments: 

• Aerial Map 

• General Plan Map 

• Zoning Map 

• Plat 

• R-2 Zoning Ordinance 

• Staff Reviews   









S89°32'11"E 100.00

S
0

0
°4

4
'11

"E
 1

0
8

.9
2

S89°32'11"E 15.01
N89°32'11"W 30.01

N
0

0
°4

4
'11

"W
 1

0
8

.9
2

(WEST 100.00) N89°32'11"W 100.00

(N
0

0
°2

7
'4

9
"E

 1
2
3

.0
0

)

(S
0

0
°2

7
'4

9
"W

 1
2
3

.0
0

)

(N89°32'11"W 85.00)

(N89°32'11"W 382.72) 382.74
BASIS OF BEARING

1825 SOUTH STREET

FOUND NAIL

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

FOUND BRASS CAP MONUMENT
FOUND BRASS CAP MONUMENT

231.89

3
0

.0
0

85.0065.85

3
0

.0
0

2
2
8

5
W

E
S

T
S

T
R

E
E
T

2
2
10

 W
E
S

T
 S

T
R

E
E
T

ANTELOPE DRIVE (1700 SOUTH)

GLORIA & JOSE M. GARCIA
TAX ID NO. 12-092-0065

KURT R. & KIMBERLY NIELSON
TAX ID NO. 12-092-0066

DENNIS E. & APRIL R. LINDAMOOD
TAX ID NO. 12-092-0060

LOT 20
CHERRY VILLAGE SUBDIVISION NO. 1

MICHAEL SCOTT SHEA
TAX ID NO. 12-462-0020

LOT 21
CHERRY VILLAGE SUBDIVISION NO. 1

NATHANAEL WAYNE HOWARD
TAX ID NO. 12-462-0021

LOT 23
CHERRY VILLAGE SUBDIVISION NO. 1

SHAWN MUNNS
TAX ID NO. 12-462-0023

LOT 22
CHERRY VILLAGE SUBDIVISION NO. 1

ADAM T. & JENNY ARNELL
TAX ID NO. 12-462-0022

NORTH QUARTER CORNER, SECTION 16,
TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST,
SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN

(N89°32'11"W 2650.45)

3
3

.0
0

POINT OF BEGINNING
NIELSON PROPERTY

POINT OF BEGINNING

S
0

0
°4

4
'11

"E
 3

2
6

.6
8

(WEST 1335.48)

NORTHEAST CORNER, SECTION 16,
TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST,

SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN

N
0

0
°4

4
'11

"E
 3

2
6

.6
8

10' UTILITY & DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

LOT 2022
21,344.90 SQ/FT
OR 0.49 ACRES

2262 WEST

10' UTILITY & DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

FOUND NAIL

LEGEND

BASIS OF BEARINGS

W E

S

N

THE BASIS OF BEARING FOR THIS SURVEY WAS ESTABLISHED USING FOUND CENTERLINE
MONUMENTS LOCATED AT THE INTERSECTIONS OF 2210 WEST STREET & 1825 SOUTH STREET

AND ALSO 2285 WEST STREET & 1825 SOUTH STREET AS SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY PLAT.

Easement Line

Section Monument

Center Line

Property Line

Street Monument

Section Line

Property Corner Break Line

UTAH LAND SURVEYING, LLC
A PROFESSIONAL LICENSED LAND SURVEYING COMPANY

1359 FAIRWAY CIR
FARMINGTON, UT 84025

PHONE   801.725.8395
FAX  801.820.7775

www.utahlandsurveying.com

ULS

A FINAL SUBDIVISION AMENDMENT PLAT

CHERRY VILLAGE SUBDIVISION NO. 1
AMENDMENT NO. 1

LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 16,

TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN,

SYRACUSE CITY, DAVIS COUNTY , STATE OF UTAH

WANGEMANN

MICHAEL L.

No. 6431156

______________________________

Michael L. Wangemann, PLS

Date of Plat or Map: March 27, 2019

PLS# 6431156-2201

I MICHAEL L. WANGEMANN, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM A REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR, AND THAT I HOLD
CERTIFICATE NO. 6431156, AS PRESCRIBED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF UTAH,  I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT
BY AUTHORITY OF THE OWNERS, I HAVE MADE A SURVEY OF THE TRACT OF LAND SHOWN ON THIS PLAT AND
DESCRIBED BELOW, AND HAVE SUBDIVIDED SAID TRACT OF LAND INTO LOTS, HEREAFTER TO BE KNOWN AS THE

CHERRY VILLAGE SUBDIVISION NO. 1 AMENDMENT NO. 1
AND THAT SAME HAS BEEN CORRECTLY SURVEYED AND STAKED ON THE GROUND AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT.

BEGINNING AT A POINT THAT IS NORTH 89°32'11” WEST ALONG THE SECTION LINE 1335.48 FEET AND SOUTH 00°44'11”
EAST 359.68 FEET FROM THE NORTHEAST CORNER, SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE
AND MERIDIAN; AND RUNNING THENCE SOUTH 00°44'11” EAST 108.92 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF CHERRY VILLAGE
SUBDIVISION NO. 1; THENCE SOUTH 89°32'11” EAST 15.01 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 22, CHERRY
VILLAGE SUBDIVISION NO. 1; THENCE ALONG THE EAST, SOUTH AND WEST LINES OF SAID LOT 22 THE FOLLOWING
THREE (3) COURSES: SOUTH 00°27'49” WEST 123.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°32'11” WEST 85.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH
00°27'49” EAST 123.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°32'11” WEST 30.01 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00°44'11” WEST 108.92 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 89°32'11” EAST 100.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINS 21,344.90 SQ/FT OR 0.49 ACRES

ON THIS  DAY OF  , 2019, personally appeared before me, the undersigned
notary public, the signer(s) of the above owner's dedication, who duly acknowledged to me they signed
it freely and voluntarily and for the purposes therein mentioned.

residing at : 

commission expires: 

a notary public commissioned in utah

print name

© COPYRIGHT 2014, UTAH LAND SURVEYING, LLC.  ALL RIGHT RESERVED.

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

INDIVIDUAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

WE THE UNDERSIGNED OWNERS OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND, DO HEREBY SET APART AND
SUBDIVIDE THE SAME TRACT INTO LOTS AND STREETS AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT AND NAME SAID TRACT

CHERRY VILLAGE SUBDIVISION NO. 1 AMENDMENT NO. 1,
AND DO HEREBY DEDICATE TO PUBLIC USE ALL THOSE PARTS OR PORTIONS OF SAID TRACT OF LAND
DESIGNATED AS STREETS, THE SAME TO BE USED AS PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES AND ALSO GRANT AND DEDICATE
A PERPETUAL RIGHT AND EASEMENT OVER, UPON AND UNDER THE LANDS DESIGNATED HEREON AS PUBLIC
UTILITY, THE SAME TO BE USED FOR THE INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF PUBLIC UTILITY
SERVICE LINE, WITH NO BUILDINGS OR STRUCTURES BEING ERECTED WITHIN SUCH EASEMENTS AS SHOWN
HEREON TO BE USED BY THE PUBLIC UNTIL SUCH TIME THAT THE ROAD IS EXTENDED.

OWNER'S DEDICATION

IN WITNESS WE HAVE HEREUNTO SET OUR SIGNATURE THIS  DAY OF  , 2019.

SYRACUSE CITY ENGINEER

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE REQUIREMENTS OF ALL
APPLICABLE STATUTES AND ORDINANCES PREREQUISITE TO
CITY ENGINEER APPROVAL OF THE FOREGOING PLAT AND
DEDICATIONS HAVE BEEN COMPLIED WITH.

SIGNED THIS  DAY OF , 2019.

SYRACUSE CITY ENGINEER

SYRACUSE CITY APPROVAL
THIS PLAT AND ANY DEDICATIONS OFFERED HEREIN ARE
APPROVED AND ACCEPTED BY THE MAYOR OF SYRACUSE
CITY THIS  DAY OF  , 2019.

MAYOR

ATTEST TITLE

SYRACUSE CITY ATTORNEY'S OFFICE

SYRACUSE CITY ATTORNEY

SYRACUSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

APPROVED BY THE SYRACUSE CITY ATTORNEYS' OFFICE
THIS  DAY OF , 2019.

MANAGER, PLANNING DIVISION

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT COMPLIES WITH THE MINIMUM
REQUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE OF SYRACUSE CITY,
AND CONFORMS WITH THE APPROVED PRELIMINARY PLAT, AS REVIEWED
AND APPROVED BY THE SYRACUSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION AND
THE MAYOR OF SYRACUSE CITY, PREREQUISITE TO FINAL PLAT
APPROVAL BY THE MAYOR OF SYRACUSE CITY.

SIGNED THIS  DAY OF , 2019.

state of utah

county of davis
}ss

ADAM ARNELL

JENNY ARNELL

SHEET
OF 11

NARRATIVE
THE PURPOSE OF THIS SUBDIVISION AMENDMENT WAS TO COMBINE THE ADDITIONAL

PORTION OF GROUND THAT THE ARNELL'S PURCHASED FROM THE NIELSON'S, DIRECTLY TO
THE NORTH.  THE AMOUNT OF GROUND THAT WAS PURCHASED WAS 0.25 ACRES.  IN THE

PROCESS OF THIS AMENDMENT THE ORIGINAL PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT ALONG THE NORTH
LINE OF LOT 22 WAS REQUESTED TO BE VACATED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY RECORDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIME

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF UTAH, COUNTY OF DAVIS, RECORDED AND FILED AT THE REQUEST OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY RECORDER No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK



R-2 ZONING ORDINANCE 

 

10.65.010 Purpose.  

The purpose of this zone is to provide for moderate density single-family residential 

development that conforms to the system of services available. 

 

10.65.020 Permitted uses.  

The following, and no others, are uses permitted by right provided the parcel and building meet 

all other provisions of this title and any other applicable ordinances of Syracuse City. 

 

(A) Accessory uses and buildings (200 square feet or less). 

 

(B) Agriculture. 

 

(C) Churches, synagogues, and temples. 

 

(D) Dwellings, single-family. 

 

(E) Educational services. 

 

(F) Household pets. 

 

(G) Minor home occupations. 

 

(H) Public and quasi-public buildings. 

 

(I) Public parks. 

 

(J) Rabbits and hens. 

 

(K) Residential facilities for persons with disabilities. 

 

(L) Vietnamese potbellied pigs. 

 

10.65.030 Conditional uses.  

The following, and no others, may be conditional uses permitted after application and approval 

as specified in SCC 10.20.080: 

 

(A) Accessory uses and buildings (greater than 200 square feet) (minor). 

 

(B) Apiaries (minor). 

 

(C) Day care centers (major). 

 

(D) Dwellings, accessory (major/minor, see SCC 10.30.020). 

 

(E) Dwelling groups (major). 

 

(F) Dog kennels (minor). 

 

(G) Home occupations (major). 

 



(H) Temporary commercial uses (see SCC 10.35.050) (minor). 

 

(I) Temporary use of buildings (see SCC 10.30.100(A)(12)) (minor).  

 

10.65.040 Minimum lot standards.  

All lots shall be developed and all structures and uses shall be placed on lots in accordance with 

the following standards: 

 

(A) Density: minimum lot size 10,000 square feet, but in no case shall the density exceed 3.0 lots 

per gross acre. 

 

(B) Lot width: 85 feet. 

 

(C) Front yard: 25 feet. 

 

(D) Side yards: eight feet (both sides). 

 

(E) Rear yard: 30 feet. 

 

(F) Building height: as allowed by current building code. 

 

(G) Variation of lot: the Land Use Authority may reduce the lot width requirement in particular 

cases when a property owner provides evidence they acquired the land in good faith and, by 

reason of size, shape, or other special condition(s) of the specific property, application of the lot 

width requirement would effectively prohibit or unreasonably restrict the ability to subdivide the 

property or a reduction of the lot width requirement would alleviate a clearly demonstrable 

hardship as distinguished from a special privilege sought by the applicant. The Land Use 

Authority shall approve no lot width reduction without a determination that: 

 

(1) The strict application of the lot width requirement would result in substantial hardship; 

 

(2) Adjacent properties do not share generally such a hardship and the property in question has 

unusual circumstances or conditions where literal enforcement of the requirements of the zone 

would result in severe hardship; 

 

(3) The granting of such reduction would not be of substantial detriment to adjacent property or 

influence negatively upon the intent of the zone; 

 

(4) The condition or situation of the property concerned or the intended use of the property is not 

of so general or recurring a nature as to detract from the intention or appearance of the zone as 

identified in the City’s general plan. 

 

10.65.050 Off-street parking and loading.  

Off-street parking and loading shall be provided as specified in Chapter 10.40 SCC. 

 

10.65.060 Signs.  

The signs permitted in this zone shall be those allowed in residential zones by Chapter 10.45 

SCC. 



      1 

 

Syracuse City Public Works Department 

 

 

 

 

Cherry Village Subdivision Amendment No.1 

2262 West 1825 South 
Engineer Plat Amendment Review 

Completed by Brian Bloemen on March 27, 2019 

Plat: 
 

1. Add signature blocks for the utility companies. 
2. Show all existing easements. 

 
If you have any further comments or questions, please feel free to contact me at 801-614-9630. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Brian Bloemen, P.E. 
City Engineer 



                                           
                       

 
TO: Community Development, Attention:  Noah Steele 
FROM: Jo Hamblin, Fire Marshal 
RE: Arnell Preliminary Plat 
 
 
 
DATE: March 18, 2019 
 
I have reviewed the plan submitted for the above referenced project. The Fire Prevention 
Division of this department does not have any comments/concerns. 
 
These plans have been reviewed for Fire Department requirements only.  Other 
departments must review these plans and may have their requirements. This review by 
the Fire Department must not be construed as final approval by Syracuse City. 
 
  



 Subdivision Amendment Plan Review 
 

 

Mayor  
Mike Gailey 
 
City Council  
Corinne Bolduc 
Lisa Bingham 
David Maughan 
Jordan Savage 
Doug Peterson 
 
City Manager 
Brody Bovero  

 
 
 
 

 
 

  
3/29/2019 
 
Dear Applicant, 
 
The Syracuse City Community and Economic Development Department has conducted a review 
of the Cherry Village No. 1 Amendment 1 Plan for compliance with the city’s adopted land use 
ordinance. Please refer to the following table for items that require additional attention.  
  

1. While the level of preliminary detail on the plat is appreciated, the plat should be drawn 
in final plat format with the following: 

a. Owner’s Dedication with the following language: 
i. “warrant and defend and save the City harmless against any easements 

or other encumbrances on the dedicated streets which will interfere with 
the City’s use, maintenance and operation of the streets.” 

b. The Planning Commission box should refer to the Planning Commission Chair, 
not the Planning Division Manager. 

c. Public Utilities approval and acceptance of public utility easements. 
 
Please contact me with any questions concerning this project.  
 
Regards, 
 
Royce Davies 
City Planner 
(801) 614-9632 
rdavies@syracuseut.com 

mailto:rdavies@syracuseut.com


Agenda Item # 5 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA 

April 2, 2019

Public Hearing: Amendment to R-1 Cluster

The City Council desires to change R-1 Cluster from a major conditional use permit to 
a freestanding zone.  Please find attached a draft ordinance amendment that 
incorporates comments recieved by this body on 3/19/19. 



Chapter 10.80 

CLUSTER SUBDIVISION (MAJOR CONDITIONAL USE) 

Sections: 

10.80.010    Purpose. 

10.80.020    Development requirements. 

10.80.030    Permitted uses. 

10.80.040    Repealed. 

10.80.050    Design standards. 

10.80.060    Approval. 

10.80.070    Development plan and agreement requirements. 

10.80.010 Purpose 

Cluster subdivisions may receive approval for a major conditional use permit in the R-1 residential zone. 
The purpose of this chapter is to encourage open space conservation and imaginative and efficient 
utilization of land by providing greater flexibility in the location of buildings on the land and the 
clustering of dwelling units. This will allow the developer to more closely tailor a development project to 
a specific user group, such as retired persons or equestrian-oriented development. The Land Use 
Authority shall not grant such a conditional use unless the cluster subdivision meets the regulations of 
the applicable zone in which it resides, except as may lawfully be modified by City Council approval. The 
application of cluster concepts is intended to encourage good neighborhood design and preserve open 
space while ensuring substantial compliance with the intent of the subdivision and land use ordinances. 
[Ord. 15-24 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 11-13 § 1; Ord. 11-02 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 08-07 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 06-27; Ord. 
06-17; Ord. 03-08; Code 1971 § 10-16-010.] 

10.80.020 Development requirements 

(A) Acreage. A cluster subdivision shall have a minimum of 10 acres of contiguous land area. 

(B) Phasing. The proposed development plan shall include all possible future phases. No additional 
phases shall be permitted beyond the original concept. Adjacent property developed similarly shall be a 
separate development and shall meet all requirements independently from any adjacent development. 

(C) Ownership. The development shall be in single or corporate ownership at the time of application or 
the subject of an application filed jointly by all owners of the property. 

(D) The Land Use Authority shall require that the arrangement of structures and open spaces be 
developed in such a manner as to prevent any adverse effects on adjacent properties. 

(E) Density. The density of dwellings in a cluster subdivision shall not exceed 4.6  2.3 units per acre. 

Red text = new language
Black text = existing language
Crossed out text = existing language to be deleted

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Text Box
03/20/19 - pg 1

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line



(F) Minimum Lot Standards. Approval of the development plan shall determine lot area, lot width, 
setbacks, and lot coverage regulations for multifamily structures, with a minimum separation of 16 feet 
between structures. 

Single-family detached All lots shall have the following minimum lot standards: 

(1) Density. Maximum density is calculated by multiplying the development’s gross acreage by 

50 percent, and then multiplying the remaining acreage by 4.6 2.3 units per acre. 

(2) Minimum lot area: 7,000 square feet. 

(3) Lot width: 60 feet. 

(4) Setbacks: 

(a) Front: 15 feet. 

(b) Garage: 20 feet. 

(c) Side: eight feet. 

(d) Rear: 20 feet. 

(e) Corner lot side: 20 feet. 

(G) Homeowners’ Association. The development shall have a lawfully organized and professionally 
managed homeowners’ association. 

(H) Open Space and Common Space. 

(1) The development shall provide 50 percent open space. A minimum of 10 percent of the open 
space shall be common space. 

(2) Open space and common space shall not include streets, driveways, or parking areas. 

(3) Open space may include agricultural areas, recreation areas, and wetland preserve. 

(4) Open space not used for agriculture and wetland preserve shall be fully landscaped and 
developed with amenities as identified in the City’s parks master plan for the enjoyment and full 
use of all residents of the development and/or the public. 

(5) Open space that is designated for agricultural use shall have a recorded perpetual 
conservation easement. 

(6) Open space shall not be enclosed with fencing, except as required per buffer table of this 
title. 

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Text Box
03/20/19 - pg 2



(7) Common space shall be fully landscaped and developed with approved amenities for the 
enjoyment and full use of all residents of the development and/or the public. 

(8) Common space shall be preserved, maintained and owned through the homeowners’ 
association from the onset, or may be deeded to Syracuse City, if the developer makes the 
request and the City Council grants the request, at the City Council’s sole discretion. 

(I) Landscape Plan. The Land Use Authority shall review the landscape plan designed in accordance with 
an approved theme that provides unity and aesthetics to the project. 

(1) Landscape plan shall be signed and stamped by a professional landscape architect. 

(2) The landscaping plan shall indicate all special features, such as ponds, fountains, signs, 
walking paths, plant species and size, fencing, etc., together with a planting plan. 

(3) Landscaping must be completed prior to approval of the next consecutive phase of the 
subdivision, or within the negotiated phasing per the development agreement. 

(4) Street trees shall have a minimum two-inch caliper trunk size measured 12 inches above 
ground level, at the time of installation. 

(5) Street trees shall be selected in accordance with the approved tree species in city code. 

(6) Street trees shall be spaced according to the approved species and park strip width. In no 
case shall street trees be planted further than 50 feet apart. 

(J) Sidewalks and Park Strips. The design and location of public sidewalks within a cluster subdivision 
shall be located in the public right-of-way and meet the following conditions: 

(1) Sidewalks shall be a minimum of five feet wide and meet the minimum ADA standards. 

(2) Parkstrips shall be a minimum of 10 feet wide. 

(3) Meandering sidewalks shall be no closer than five feet to the back of curb. 

(4) Sidewalk construction and utilities shall comply with the adopted Engineering Standards and 
Specifications. 

(K) Trail System/Walking/Bike Paths. 

(1) The development shall contain trail/walking/bike paths and shall connect to the City’s trails 
system per the trail master plan, when applicable. 

(2) Trail/walking/bike paths shall meet the City’s Engineering Standards and Specifications. 

(L) Signage. The development may include landscaped identification entry signs maintained by the 
homeowners’ association. 

nsteele
Text Box
03/20/19 - pg 3



(M) Due to the nature of cluster subdivisions and the fact that most of the usual dwellings have site 
restrictions and because the placement of dwellings and other structures on the site may produce a 
negative impact to surrounding land uses, the location, size, and general footprint of all dwellings and 
other main buildings shall be shown on the plans submitted for review. 

(N) The proposed development shall not be detrimental to the health, safety, or general welfare of 
persons residing in the vicinity. [Ord. 15-24 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 13-15 § 1; Ord. 11-13 § 1; Ord. 11-02 § 1 
(Exh. A); Ord. 08-07 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 06-27; Ord. 06-17; amended 1999; Code 1971 § 10-16-020.] 

10.80.030 Permitted uses. 

Uses permitted in the cluster subdivision shall be those uses permitted in the zoning district in which the 
subdivision is located; provided, that for purposes of this section, the single-family dwelling designation 
shall include single-family attached dwellings such as town houses and row houses or zero lot line 
dwellings. A single structure shall have no more than four attached dwelling units. [Ord. 15-24 § 1 (Exh. 
A); Ord. 11-13 § 1; Ord. 11-02 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 08-07 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 06-27; Ord. 06-17; Code 1971 § 
10-16-030.] 

nsteele
Text Box
03/20/19 - pg 4

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line



The following, and no others, are uses permitted by right provided the parcel and buildings meet all other provisions of this title and 

any other applicable ordinances of Syracuse City.

(A) Accessory uses and buildings (200 square feet or less).

(B) Agriculture.

(C) Churches, synagogues, and temples.

(D) Dwellings, single-family.

(E) Educational services.

(F) Farm animal keeping (limited to the community open/common spaces and as specified in SCC 10.30.040).

(G) Farm indusry (on a parcel of fve acres or more and limited to the community open/common spaces).

(H) Fruit and vegetable sands.

(I) Household pets.

(J) Minor home occupations.

(K) Public parks.

(L) Residential facilities for persons with disabilities.

https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=116
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=13
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=84
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=1
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=13
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=4
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=6
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=20
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=20
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=29
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=40
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/html/Syracuse10/Syracuse1030.html#10.30.040
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=41
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=56
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=53
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=97
nsteele
Text Box
03/20/19 - pg 5



10.80.040 Conditional uses.

The following, and no others, may be conditional uses permitted after application and approval as specifed in SCC 10.20.080:

(A) Dwelling, accessory (minor, see SCC 10.30.020).

(B) Greenhouses (minor) (Under 200 Square foot permitted, Over 200 sqft permitted in common area only)

(C) Home occupations (major).

(D) Private parks and recreational activities (minor).

(E) Public and quasi-public buildings (major).

mailto:&subject=10.55.030%20Conditional%20uses.&body=https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/%3FSyracuse10/Syracuse1055.html%2310.55.030
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=25
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/html/Syracuse10/Syracuse1020.html#10.20.080
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=1
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=13
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=18
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=29
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/html/Syracuse10/Syracuse1030.html#10.30.020
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=53
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=97
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=13
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=97
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/cgi/defs.pl?def=115
https://www.codepublishing.com/UT/Syracuse/html/Syracuse10/Syracuse1035.html#10.35.050
nsteele
Text Box
03/20/19 - pg 6



10.80.040 50 Bonus density incentives. 

Repealed by Ord. 15-24. [Ord. 13-15 § 1; Ord. 11-13 § 1; Ord. 11-02 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 08-07 § 1 (Exh. A); 
Ord. 06-27; Ord. 06-17; Code 1971 § 10-16-040.] 

10.80.050 60 Design standards 

(A) The development shall have restrictive covenants to facilitate superior architectural design elements. 

(B) A common building theme shall be required and approved by the Planning Commission. The design 
shall show detail in the unification of exterior architectural style, color, and size of each unit; however, 
the intent is not to have the design so dominant that all units are identical. 

(C) Patios shall not extend beyond the width of the primary structure and shall not extend beyond half 
the rear setback. Privacy fencing around a patio is allowed. [Ord. 15-24 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 11-13 § 1; Ord. 
11-02 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 08-07 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 06-27; Ord. 06-17; Code 1971 § 10-16-050.] 

10.80.060 70 Approval 

A cluster subdivision is a special type of subdivision approved by major conditional use permit and, as 
such, shall meet design standards and be subject to all provisions of the Syracuse subdivision ordinance 
and submitted development plans. [Ord. 15-24 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 11-13 § 1; Ord. 11-02 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 
08-07 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 06-27; Ord. 06-17; Code 1971 § 10-16-060.] 

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Text Box
03/20/19 - pg 7

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line



10.80.070 80 Development plan and agreement requirements. 

(A) Subdivision ordinance requirements shall apply to cluster subdivisions except where negotiated 
within the development agreement. The developer shall submit a residential development plan of all 
project phases for City consideration and approval and shall integrate the proposed development plan 
into a development agreement between the developer and City. The development agreement shall 
undergo an administrative review process to ensure compliance with adopted City ordinances and 
standards with approval by the City Council. The property shall be developed in accordance with the 
development agreement and current City ordinances, including the development requirements as 
identified within this chapter, in effect on the approval date of the agreement, together with the 
requirements set forth in the agreement, except when federal, state, county, and/or City laws and 
regulations, promulgated to protect the public’s health, safety, and welfare, require future modifications 
under circumstances constituting a rational public interest. The Land Use Authority shall use the 
submitted development plan and agreement with the design amenities and unique development 
features and merits of the development to determine overall development dwelling-unit density up to a 
maximum as determined by the bonus density calculations. 

(B) The development plan submitted for review shall show the location and building elevations with 
exterior building materials, size, and general footprint of all dwelling units and other main buildings and 
amenities. 

(C) The development plan submitted for review shall include landscaping, fencing, and other 
improvement plans for common or open spaces, with the landscaping designed in accordance with an 
approved theme to provide unity and aesthetics to the project. The plan shall include all special 
features, such as ponds, fountains, signs, walking paths, inviting entryways, etc., together with a 
landscape planting plan. Common space and recreational areas should be the focal point for the overall 
design of the development, with various community facilities grouped in places well related to these 
open spaces and easily accessible to pedestrians. 

(D) The proposed development shall show it will not be detrimental to the health, safety, or general 
welfare of persons residing adjacent to the proposed development. 

(E) A cluster subdivision community shall be of sufficient size, composition, and arrangement to enable 
its feasible development as a complete unit, professionally managed by a legally established owners’ 
association and governed by enforceable, duly recorded CC&Rs. 

(F) Developer shall prepare a budget for the homeowners’ association operation and facilities 
maintenance. Developer shall establish a dedicated operating fund for the collection of homeowner 
dues and shall provide funding for said maintenance for the first three years’ operating expenses of the 
homeowners’ association or until developer owns less than 40 percent of the lots. When the developer 
owns less than 40 percent of the lots, developer shall pay dues on his remaining lots in accordance with 
the CC&Rs and fee schedule adopted by the homeowners’ association. The CC&Rs will provide in the 
budget a depreciation estimate and provide for the collection of fees sufficient to meet the depreciation 
of infrastructure under control of the homeowners’ association. [Ord. 15-24 § 1 (Exh. A); Ord. 13-15 § 1; 
Ord. 11-13 § 1; Code 1971 § 10-16-070.] 

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Line

nsteele
Text Box
03/15/19 - pg 8

nsteele
Line



Agenda Item # 6 Public Hearing: Engineering Standards Update 

Secondary metering for new construction is a requirement from the State Legislature 
beginning Apri 1, 2020. City Council has directed Staff to update the City's 
Engineering Standards to include the installation of secondary meters for all new 
construction. 

The proposed changes to the Engineering Standards are shown in blue along with 
updating the Standard Drawings. Staff is recommending all new residential secondary 
services be set up for a 1-inch connection.

PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA 
April 2, 2019



ENGINEERING STANDARDS & CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS 

37 

DIVISION 3A: PRESSURE IRRIGATION 

Section 3A.01 GENERAL: 

This division covers furnishing and installing pressure pipe as shown on the Drawings or established in the field, and 
all flushing, testing, repairing, as required to ensure adequate and safe operation of the water system.  Certification 
of all tests required by the American Water Works Association shall be provided by the manufacturer.  The three-
edge bearing test will be required, upon request of the inspector.  All pipe shall be standard lengths except for 
making connections to valves, fittings, and other such closures.  The minimum main diameter shall be eight (8)-
inches. 

Section 3A.02 DUCTILE IRON PIPE: 

Sub-section A. Materials: 

Ductile iron pipe shall conform to all requirements of ANSI/AWWA C151/A21.51, "American National 
Standard for Ductile Iron Pipe, Centrifugally Cast in Metal Molds or Sand-Lined molds, for Water or Other 
Liquids." The minimum Pressure Class will be 200.  If thickness class pipe is used, the minimum shall be 
Thickness Class 50. 

All pipe shall be made of good quality ductile cast iron and of such chemical composition and structure as 
is required to meet the physical and mechanical property requirements of the standard. 

Sub-section B. Joints: 

All fittings, hydrants and joints shall have restrained or flanged joints installed.  Push on or 
mechanical joints are not acceptable.  Lubricants shall be non-toxic and have no deteriorating 
effects on gasket materials.  It shall not impart taste to water in a pipe.  It shall conform in every 
way to ANSI 21.1 

1. Restrained Joints.  All restrained joints shall meet requirements of
ANSI/AWWA C111/A21.11.  All gasket surfaces shall be smooth and free from imperfections.  
Gaskets shall conform to tests in accordance with specifications and shall be less than one year 
old.  All restrained joint fittings shall have concrete thrust blocks as well. 

2. Flanged Joints.  Flanges, when required, shall conform to ANSI/AWWA 
C115/A21.15-83.  Flanged joints shall meet the requirements of ANSI/AWWA C110/A21.10, 
"American National Standard for Ductile Iron and Gray Iron Fittings, 3-inch Through 48-inch for 
Water and Other Liquids." Flanged joints shall be bolted firmly with machine, stud, or cap bolts of 
proper size. Flanges may be cast integrally with the pipe or may be screwed on a threaded pipe. 
Flanges shall be faced and drilled and dimensioned properly for the size and pressure required.  
Bolts and nuts, unless otherwise specified, shall be made of the best quality refined iron or steel, 
and have clean, well-fitting threads. Bolts will be provided with standard hexagonal nuts and 
standard hexagonal heads. Bolts shall be of the diameter required for each flange, and when 
installed shall be of length so that no more than three-eighths inch (3/8”) nor less than one-eighth 
inch (1/8”) extends past the face of the nut. All buried metallic fittings and bolts shall be coated 
with a non-oxide wax and wrapped with polyethylene. 

Gaskets shall be rubber, either ring or full face, and shall be one-eighth-inch (1/8”) thick.  

Sub-section C. Coatings and Linings for Ductile Iron Pipe: 

All exterior surfaces of pipe and fittings shall be coated with hot coal tar at least one (1) mil thick. All 
interior surfaces shall be cement mortar lined with a standard thickness according to ANSI/AWWA 
C104/A21.4-80. 



ENGINEERING STANDARDS & CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS 

38 

Sub-section D. Fittings: 

Fittings for ductile iron pipe shall conform to the provisions of ANSI/AWWA C110/A21.10-82 or 
C153/A21.53-58.  All elbows, 90º caps, and loops must be mega lugged.  All fittings must be wrapped & 
greased before back fill.  All fittings shall be Restrained-Joint or flanged type.   All bolts shall be covered 
in food grade grease prior to placement of plastic. 

Sub-section E. Locator Tape: 

All pipe shall include a 3-inch warning tape installed in the pipeline trench approximately 12-inches above 
the pipe. Identification tape shall be furnished with white or black printing on a colored field having the 
words: “CAUTION:  IRRIGATION LINE BURIED BELOW” 

Section 3A.03 PVC PIPE: 

Sub-section A. Materials: 

Pipe for the transmission and distribution of water shall be manufactured in accordance with AWWA 
C900-81, "AWWA Standard for Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) Pressure Pipe, 4-inch through 12-inch, for 
Water:" The PVC pipe shall have a cast-iron-pipe-equivalent outside diameter and be a minimum of DR-14 
pipe 

PVC pipe fourteen-inches (14”) and larger shall be manufactured in accordance with AWWA C905-88, 
"AWWA Standard for Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) Water Transmission Pipe, Nominal Diameters 14-inch 
through 36-inch"and be a minimum of DR-18 pipe.  Pipe smaller than four-inches (4”) shall be schedule 40 
PVC. 

Pipe shall be standard dimension ration pressure rated PVC pipe (SDR-RP-PVC) conforming to the latest 
revision of ASTM D2241 and the National Bureau of Standard Product Standard PS 22-70. The pipe shall 
be PVC Class 900 pipe shall meet the requirements of ASTM D 2241 except that the pipe shall have an 
outside diameter of ductile iron pipe sizes instead of iron pipe sizes.  The PVC pipe shall meet the 
requirements of the AWWA C 900 with pressure clasp of 200 and the DR of not less than 14. Pipe shall be 
bell and spigot, twin gasket.  

At least 85 per cent of the total footage shall be furnished in standard 20-foot lengths.. 

Color of all pressure pipes for irrigation water shall be purple. 

Sub-section B. Joints: 

Joints shall be push on rubber gasket type.  Lubrication shall be water soluble, non-toxic, non-objectionable 
in taste and odor imparted to the water, non-supporting of bacteria growth, and have no deteriorating effect 
on the PVC pipe or rubber gaskets. 

Jointing of all pipe shall be as recommended by the manufacturer.  All pipes shall be handled in such a way 
so as to prevent damage to the coating and lining.  Refer to backfilling specifications for proper bedding 
and compaction.  Thrust blocking shall be applied at all tees, plugs, caps and at bends deflecting 11 1/4 
degrees or more. All bolts shall be covered in food grade grease prior to placement of plastic.  Prevention 
of concrete adhesion by means of 12 mil plastic sheeting to protect valves or pipe material shall be directed 
by the City Inspector.  

Sub-section C. Fittings: 

All fittings to be used with the PVC pipe shall be the same as fittings for ductile iron pipe and shall 
conform to the provisions of ANSI/AWWA C110/A21.10-82 or C153/A21.53-58.  All fittings shall be 
Restrained Joint or flanged type unless otherwise specified by the Public Works Representative/Engineer. 



ENGINEERING STANDARDS & CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS 

39 

Sub-section D. Locator Tape: 

All pipe shall include a three-inch (3”) locator tape installed in the pipeline trench approximately twelve 
inches (12”) below the ground surface.  This tape shall be prepared with white or black printing on a purple 
field, color Pantone 512C, having the words: “CAUTION:  IRRIGATION LINE BURIED 
BELOW” 

Sub-section E. Tracer Wire: 

All pipe shall include a tracer wire installed at the same elevation as the centerline of the pipe. The wire 
shall be a 14 gauge solid insulated copper wire. The tracer wire shall be installed adjacent to and paralleling 
the pipe at a distance of no more than 6” from the outside edge of the pipe. At all tees the wire shall be 
properly spliced using a grease cap and wire nut or soldering. At all valves the wire shall be brought up into 
the valve box where it will be easily accessible.  The City Public Works department shall oversee the 
connection points of the locator wire.  

Copperhead Industries, LLC Snake Pit 14” Magnetized Tracer Box with purple cast iron top (CHLD14P) 
shall be installed at the nearest secondary service to each fire hydrant.  The top of the tracer box shall match 
the top back of curb elevation.  Tracer wire shall be run from the main with the service and connected to 
the Test Station. 

Section 3A.04 PIPE INSTALLATION: 

Sub-section A. Cutting: 

Cutting of pipe for closure pieces or for other reasons shall be done in a neat and workmanlike manner by a 
method recommended by the manufacturer. After cutting, the pipe shall be beveled and filed to prevent 
gasket damage in joint assembly. 

Sub-section B.   Dewatering of Trench: 

Where water is encountered in the trench, it shall be removed during pipe-laying operations and until the 
ends of the pipe are sealed. See "Control of Groundwater" in Division 2 Trench - Excavation and Backfill. 

Sub-section C.   Laying of Pipe: 

The pipe and pipe coating (where applicable) shall be inspected for defects before installation. Any defects 
shall be repaired or the pipe shall be replaced, whichever is deemed necessary by the Public Works 
Representative/ Engineer. 

All pipe shall be laid and maintained to the required lines and grades with fittings and valves at the required 
locations.  The pipes shall be installed with a 30-inch minimum cover from finished road surface for 
irrigation water. The Developer/Contractor shall be responsible to install the pipe line to the alignment set 
by the Public Works Director/Engineer or as shown on the Drawings. 

All pipe, fittings, and valves shall be moved carefully, either when lowering from the truck, or when 
placing in the trench. Under no circumstances shall materials be dropped or dumped from the truck or into 
the trench. 

The Developer/Contractor shall take the necessary precautions to ensure that foreign materials do not enter 
the pipe. No debris, tools, or other materials shall be placed in the pipe during laying operations. When 
laying of pipe is not in progress, the pipe shall be closed with a water-tight plug. 

Maximum deflections at pipe joints shall not exceed the joint specifications of AWWA C600 of latest 
revision, or the recommendations of the pipe manufacturer. 



ENGINEERING STANDARDS & CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS 

40 

Deflections in PVC pipe shall be made by longitudinal bending of the barrel of the pipe rather than 
deflecting the pipe joints. Longitudinal bending shall be limited to eighty percent (80%) of the 
manufacturer’s recommended maximum bending radius. 

Temporary support, adequate protection and maintenance of all underground and surface utility structures, 
drains, sewers and other obstructions encountered in the progress of the work shall be furnished by the 
Contractor at his own expense under the direction of the inspector. 

Wherever existing utility structures or branch connections leading to main sewers or to main drains, or 
other conduits, ducts, pipes, or structures present obstruction to the grade and alignment of the pipe, they 
shall be permanently supported, removed, relocated or reconstructed by the Contractor through cooperation 
with the City.  In those instances where their relocation or reconstruction is impracticable, a deviation from 
line and grade will be ordered, and the change shall be made in the manner directed by the Engineer.  
Connections to private residences shall be cut and looped around the pipe line. 

Unless otherwise directed, pipe shall be laid with bell ends facing the direction of laying, and for lines on 
an appreciable slope, bells shall, at the discretion of the Engineer, face upgrade. 

Pipe shall be laid so as to drain back into the main system when system is out of service.  Additional drain 
lines or blow off valves will be required where gravity draining may not be possible. 

Sub-section D. Pipe Bedding: 

All pipes shall be protected from lateral displacement and possible damage resulting from impact or 
unbalanced loading during backfilling operations by being adequately bedding. In the event trench 
materials are not, in the judgment of the Public Works Representative/Engineer, satisfactory for pipe 
bedding, imported granular bedding will be required.  See Division 2 of these specifications. 

Sub-section E.   Thrust Blocking: 

Thrust blocking shall be applied at all tees, valves, plugs, caps, and at bends that deflect 11 1/4 degrees or 
more. The fitting shall be encased in a 12 mil protective plastic wrap before the thrust block is poured.  
Reaction blocking shall be concrete, having a compressive strength of not less than three-thousand (4000) 
psi at twenty-eight (28) days. Blocking shall be placed between undisturbed soil and the fitting to be 
anchored.  The area of bearing on the pipe and on the ground shall be as shown in the Drawings. The 
blocking shall be placed so that the pipe and the fittings will be accessible for repair. 

Sub-section F.    Connections to Existing Water Lines: 

Information on the Drawings regarding existing water lines is taken from "record" drawings from the city 
or utility company files and may or may not be accurate as to size, type of material, or location of those 
lines. The Developer/Contractor will be responsible to determine the proper fittings and materials required, 
obtain the Public Works Representative/Engineer's approval of the planned connection, and perform the 
construction in a suitable fashion. 

Sub-section G.    Replacement of Damaged Material: 

Any material that becomes damaged shall be replaced by the Subdivider at his own expense. 

Sub-section H.     Responsibility for Safe Storage: 

The Developer/Contractor shall be responsible for the safe storage of material furnished by or to him, and 
accepted by him, and intended for the work, until it has been incorporated in the completed project. 



ENGINEERING STANDARDS & CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS 

41 

Section 3A.05  PRESSURE IRRIGATION SERVICE CONNECTION: 

Pressure irrigation service laterals shall be constructed with materials specified and at the locations shown on the 
Standard Drawings or at the actual location established during construction.  This section covers the installation of 
the service connection from the main to right-of-way line. 

Sub-section A.  Service Saddle Specifications: 

(For use with AWWA C-900 C1 O.D. for PVC plastic pipe.) 

All service clamps shall be brass O.D. control saddle or brass double strap tapping saddle for PVC mains, 
or direct tap (with CC Thread) O.D. sized for ductile iron mains. 

A rigid liner shall be used inside of tubing at the compression fitting on all service connections. 

All service clamps shall be manufactured of brass cast in conformance to AWWA C-800, General Section - 
1, Paragraph 1.2 (ASTM B-62). 

The two sides of the clamp shall be held together by high quality Silicon Bronze Hex Bolts (in sizes 1" and 
over) or Silicon Bronze Slotted Screws (in sizes under 1"), no dis-similar metals shall be allowed at this 
point thus eliminating the possibility of galvanic corrosion. 

Sub-section B. Polyethylene Tubing: 

Pipe for the transmission of irrigation water from main to utility box and from the utility box to the 
homeowner’s property line shall be Polyethylene CTS tube. Polyethylene CTS tube shall be manufactured 
in accordance with the standard specification for Polyethylene (PEP plastic tubing as issued by the 
American Standard for Testing and Materials under ASTM D 2737 and AWWA C-901. 

Material designation code: Polyethylene: PE 3408 

Plastic Extrusion Compound: Type III, class C, Grade 34, as defined by ASTM D 1248 

Standard pipe dimension ratio CTS (SDR) 9 - 200-psi pressure rating.   

All tubing for service lines shall be cut and installed in a neat and workmanlike manner by a method 
recommended by the manufacturer. No joints will be allowed under sidewalks or other paved surfaces. 

Tubing shall be WESTFLEX PE 3408 Gold Label or equivalent. 

A single strand 14 gauge coated copper tracer wire shall be run with all secondary services and terminated 
inside the irrigation box with the exception of services requiring a test station as specified in 3A.03E which 
shall be terminated at the test station. 

Sub-section C. Compression Connection: 

(a) The interior surface of the coupling nut, including threads, shall have a baked on, fluorocarbon 
coating to reduce assembly friction and prevent the gasket from turning and twisting during 
tightening. The nut shall bottom on a cast or machined shoulder on the body when properly 
assembled.  This design will provide a visual check to assure connection is properly assembled. 

(b) The sealing gasket shall be of molded synthetic rubber (ASTM D-2000) with molded in place 
bronze spring (ASTM A-134 Alloy #6) to eliminate the possible cold flow of the gasket between 
the pipe and fitting. A gripper band of hardened stainless steel (ANSI Type 401) shall be fitted 
into the gasket. When the gasket is compressed it will cause the gripper ring to distort the pipe 



ENGINEERING STANDARDS & CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS 

42 

giving the fitting a high resistance to pull out. The gripper band shall overlap itself to prevent cold 
flow of the gasket into the cavity under the band. 

(c) When compression fittings are used with P.E. Pipe, Stainless Steel pipe stiffeners are required to 
eliminate cold flow of plastic pipe. 

(d) All fittings are to be for CTS Polyethylene pipe. 

(e) The Minimum pull out load for the fitting when used with PE plastic pipe shall be as follows for 
each given size: 

SIZE MINIMUM PULL OUT (FT.LBS.) 
 ¾” 400 
 1” 400 
 1 1/2” 500 
 2" 500 

MUELLER 110 COMPRESSION COUPLINGS AND FITTINGS OR EQUIVALENT ARE TO BE USED 
ON ALL P.E. PLASTIC PIPE INSTALLATIONS. 

Sub-section D. Service Fittings: 

All service fittings shall be brass tees, and brass elbows or equivalent. 

Sub-section E. Mark II Ori-Seal Valve: 

These valves shall be closed bottom design and sealed against external leakage at the top by means of a 
non-adjustable resilient pressure actuated seal, and shall be provided with a secondary resilient seal 
disposed above the pressure seal for added protection of the bearing surfaces against ground water 
infiltration. Shutoff shall be affected by a resilient pressure actuated seal so disposed in the key (or plug) as 
to completely enclose the inlet body port (flow way), in the closed position.  All Curb valves shall be 
quarter turn valves and the fully open and closed positions shall be controlled by check lugs that are 
integral parts of the key and body. The maximum pressure rating shall be 165-PSI water at a maximum 
temperature of 180 degrees Fahrenheit. 

All fittings are to be CTS Size, used on CTS (Copper Tube Size) Polyethylene pipe. No IPS polyethylene 
pipe or fittings are to be used. 

Curb stop valves shall be MUELLER H-1512-2, 110 COMPRESSION by FIP thread. 

Sub-section F. Service Meter Box: 

Service box shall be a metal box with a lid saying “Irrigation”. Service Box shall be installed over the Ori-
Seal valve and hose bib. A sign shall be attached or embossed to or on the cover indicating as follows:  
"IRRIGATION" or “WATER.”  Box shall be D&L Suply M9150 or Tyler Union 6500 or equal utility box. 

Meters shall be Sensus water meters equipped with Sensus  FlexNet radio compatible with the City’s 
existing infrastructure.  

All residential secondary services shall be set up for a 1-in secondary meter according to the standard 
detail. The meter box shall be a preassembled Ford meter box PKD488-C14311-001-NL or approved equal. 
The meter cover to be type A3 stamped “IRRIGATION” with extension ring or approved equal.  Cover to 
be set at the same elevation as the top back of curb.  Centerline of cover shall be midway between the back 
of curb and walk. The meter box shall be furnished with an idler. The shut off valve shall be lockable. A 1” 
ball valve in a 14”x19”x12” purple Carson Control valve box stamped “IRRIGATION” shall be set shall be 
set 12-inches behind sidewalk and a coil of poly left above ground for future connection. 



ENGINEERING STANDARDS & CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS 

43 

Commercial industrial or institutional meter sizes shall be properly sized for the development.  

1 ½” and 2” secondary services shall be installed per the standard detail. The meter box shall be a 21-inch 
diameter by 30-inch deep corrugated plastic enclosure with D&L supply L-2244 purple cover stamped 
“IRRIGATION” or approved equal. All fittings shall be brass, and the meter ball valve shut off shall be 
lockable. A ball valve in a 14”x19”x12” purple Carson Control valve box stamped “IRRIGATION” shall 
be set shall be set 12-inches behind sidewalk and a coil of poly left above ground for future connection. 

Shop drawings showing the layout and location of the meter box shall be submitted to the City for approval 
for all secondary service sizes larger than 2-inches.  

Sub-section G. Service Pipe Installation: 

The service pipe shall be installed by use of a boring method that is approved by the Public Works 
Director/Engineer under all existing concrete and paved surfaces.  Where subsurface materials or 
conditions will not permit installation by this method, open trenching will be permitted with the approval of 
the Public Works Representative/Engineer.  Open trenching will be used in new streets not yet paved. 

Section 3A.06 TESTING AND FLUSHING: 

All newly laid pipes or any valved section thereof shall be subjected to a hydrostatic pressure test.  A leakage test 
shall be conducted concurrently with the pressure test.  All new lines, and extensions therefrom, shall be flushed 
thoroughly before being placed into service. 

Sub-section A. Pressure Test: 

If the pipe section being tested includes concrete thrust blocking, the concrete shall be allowed at least 
twenty-four (24) hours to set before any testing is conducted.  

(a)  Pressure During Test.  After the pipe has been laid and partially backfilled, all newly laid pipe, or any 
valved section of it shall, unless otherwise specified, be subjected to maximum operating pressure. 

(b)  Duration of Pressure Test.  The duration of each pressure test shall be at least 120 minutes at 200 psi. If 
service connections are installed then 150 psi. shall be allowed at 120 minutes. 

(c)  Procedure.  Each valved section of pipe shall be slowly filled with water and the specified test pressure, 
measured at the point of lowest elevation, shall be applied by means of a pump connected to the pipe in a 
satisfactory manner.  The pump, pipe connections and all necessary apparatus shall be furnished by the 
Contractor. 

(d)  Expelling Air before Test. Before applying the specified test pressure, all air shall be expelled from the 
pipe.  To accomplish this, taps shall be made, if necessary, at points of highest elevation, and afterward 
tightly plugged. 

1. Test Pressure Restrictions: 

Test pressures shall: 
a) Not be less than 150 psi pressure at the highest point along the test 
section. 

b)  Not exceed the pressure rating of the pipe. 

c)  Be of at least 2 hour duration. 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt



ENGINEERING STANDARDS & CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS 

44 

d)  Not vary by more than plus or minus five (+ 5) psi for the duration
of the test. 

e)  Not exceed twice the rated pressure of the valves or hydrants when
the pressure boundary of the test section includes closed gate valves or 
hydrants. 

f)  Not exceed the rated pressure of the valves when the test boundary 
of the test section includes closed, resilient-seated gate valves or 
butterfly valves. 

2. Pressurization:

Each valved section of pipe shall be filled slowly with water to the specified test pressure.  
Pressurization of the pipe shall be based on the elevation of the lowest point of the line or 
section under test and corrected to the elevation of the test gage.  Pressure shall be 
applied by means of a pump connected to the pipe in a manner satisfactory to the Public 
Works Representative/Engineer. 

3. Air Removal: 

Before applying the specified test pressure, air shall be expelled completely from the 
pipe, valves, and hydrants. If permanent air vents are not located at all high points, the 
Developer/Contractor shall install corporation cocks at such points so that the air can be 
expelled as the line is filled with water. After all the air has been expelled, the 
corporation cocks shall be closed and the test pressure applied. At the conclusion of the 
pressure test, the corporation cocks shall be removed and plugged.  
4. Examination:

All exposed pipe, fittings, valves, hydrants, and joints shall be examined carefully during 
the test.  Any damaged or defective pipe, fittings, valves, or hydrants that are discovered 
during the pressure test shall be repaired or replaced with sound materials and the test 
shall be repeated.  Repairs or replacements to the pipeline and subsequent pressure testing 
shall be repeated as necessary for the pipeline to pass the pressure test. 

Sub-section B.  Leakage Test: 

A leakage test shall be conducted concurrently with the pressure test. 

1. Leakage defined: 

Leakage shall be defined as the quantity of water that must be supplied into the newly 
laid pipe, or any valved section thereof, to maintain pressure within 5 psi of the specified 
test pressure after the air in the pipeline has been expelled and the pipe has been filled 
with water. 

2. Allowable leakage:

No pipe installation will be accepted if the leakage is greater than that determined by the 
following formula: 

       L = SD(P)0.5 
      133,200 

in which L is the allowable leakage, in gallons per hour; S is the length of pipeline tested 
in feet; D is the nominal diameter of the pipe, in inches; and P is the average test pressure 
(gage) during the leakage test, in pounds per square inch.  See Table 1. 



ENGINEERING STANDARDS & CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS 

45 

a)  Allowable leakage at various pressures is shown in Table 1. 

b)  When testing against closed metal-seated valves, an additional
leakage per closed valve of 0.0078 gal/hr/in. of nominal valve size shall 
be allowed. 

c)  When hydrants are in the test section, the test shall be made against
the closed hydrant. 

TABLE 1: Allowable Leakage per 1000 ft of Pipeline - gph 

*If the pipeline under test contains sections of various diameters, the allowable leakage will be the sum of the computed leakage for each size.
**To obtain leakage in liters/hour, multiply the values in the table by 3.785.

3. Examination:

All exposed pipe, fittings, valves, hydrants, and joints shall be examined carefully during 
the test.  Any damaged or defective pipe, fittings, valves, or hydrants that are discovered 
during the leakage test shall be repaired or replaced with sound materials and the test 
shall be repeated.  Repairs or replacements to the pipeline and subsequent leakage testing 
shall be repeated as necessary for the pipeline to pass the leakage test. 

Sub-section C. Acceptance of Installation: 

Acceptance shall be determined on the basis of allowable leakage. If any test of pipe laid discloses leakage 
greater than specified, the Developer/Contractor shall, at its own expense, locate and repair the defective 
material until the leakage is within the specified allowance. All visible leaks are to be repaired regardless of 
the amount of leakage. 

Sub-section D. Flushing: 

Flushing shall be accomplished through temporary flushing valves, or end of line blow-off assemblies at a 
minimum flushing velocity of two and one-half feet per second (2.5 fps).  Flow volumes to produce this 
velocity are shown in the following chart: 

FLOW RATE AND OPENINGS TO FLUSH PIPELINES 
(40 psi Residual Pressure)

Pipe Size (inches) 
Flow Required to Produce 

2.5 fps velocity (gpm)
2 26
4 100
6 220
8 390

Avg.
 Test Pressure 

psi (Bar) 

Nominal Pipe Diameter—in. 

 3  4  6  8  10  12  14  16  18  20  24  30  36  42  48  54 

 450 (31) 
 400 (28) 
 350 (24) 
 300 (21) 
 275 (19) 
 250 (17) 
 225 (16) 
 200 (14) 
 175 (12) 
 150 (10) 

125 ( 9) 
100 ( 7) 

0.48 
0.45 
0.42 
0.39 
0.37 
0.36 
0.34 
0.32 
0.30 
0.28 
0.25 
0.23 

0.64 
0.60 
0.56 
0.52 
0.50 
0.47 
0.45 
0.43 
0.40 
0.37 
0.34 
0.30 

0.95 
0.90 
0.84 
0.78 
0.75 
0.71 
0.68 
0.64 
0.59 
0.55 
0.50 
0.45 

1.27 
1.20 
1.12 
1.04 
1.00 
0.95 
0.90 
0.85 
0.80 
0.74 
0.67 
0.60 

1.59 
1.50 
1.40 
1.30 
1.24 
1.19 
1.13 
1.06 
0.99 
0.92 
0.84 
0.75 

1.91 
1.80 
1.69 
1.56 
1.49 
1.42 
1.35 
1.28 
1.19 
1.10 
1.01 
0.90 

2.23 
2.10 
1.97 
1.82 
1.74 
1.66 
1.58 
1.48 
1.39 
1.29 
1.18 
1.05 

2.55 
2.40 
2.25 
2.08 
1.99 
1.90 
1.80 
1.70 
1.59 
1.47 
1.34 
1.20 

2.87 
2.70 
2.53 
2.34 
2.24 
2.14 
2.03 
1.91 
1.79 
1.66 
1.51 
1.35 

3.18 
3.00 
2.81 
2.60 
2.49 
2.37 
2.25 
2.12 
1.98 
1.84 
1.68 
1.50 

3.82 
3.60 
3.37 
3.12 
2.99 
2.85 
2.70 
2.55 
2.38 
2.21 
2.01 
1.80 

4.78 
4.50 
4.21 
3.90 
3.73 
3.56 
3.38 
3.19 
2.98 
2.76 
2.52 
2.25 

5.73 
5.41 
5.06 
4.68 
4.48 
4.27 
4.05 
3.82 
3.58 
3.31 
3.02 
2.70 

6.69 
6.31 
5.90 
5.46 
5.23 
4.99 
4.73 
4.46 
4.17 
3.86 
3.53 
3.15 

7.64 
7.21 
6.74 
6.24 
5.98 
5.70 
5.41 
5.09 
4.77 
4.41 
4.03 
3.60 

8.60 
8.11 
7.58 
7.02 
6.72 
6.41 
6.03 
5.73 
5.36 
4.97 
4.53 
4.05 



ENGINEERING STANDARDS & CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS 

46 

10 610
12 880
14 1,200
16 1,565
18 1,980
20 2,450
24 3,525
30 5,507
42 10,800
48 14,100

Section 3A.07 PRESSURE IRRIGATION DRAINS: 

When system drains are necessary to be installed on extensions of the pressure irrigation system they shall be 
constructed as a system drain to a curb inlet box or system drain to a storm drain pipe.  The drain shall be 
constructed as shown on the Standard Drawings.  The materials used shall meet the requirements of Division 3A, 
Pressure Pipe Pressure Irrigation.  The connection to the box or pipe shall be by coring a hole and grouting the 
drainpipe in.  A non-shrink grout shall be used. 

When a section of pressure irrigation pipeline has to be laid such that there is a belly in it then a local drain sump 
will need to be constructed.  The drain shall be constructed as shown on the Standard Drawings.  The materials used 
shall meet the requirements of Division 3A, Pressure Pipe Pressure Irrigation, Division 4, Concrete Pipe, and 
Division 5, Manholes. 







  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEM 
 

Agenda Item # 7  Legend Pointe Final Phase 1 
 
 

Factual Summation  
Please review the following information. Any questions regarding this agenda item may 

be directed to Royce Davies, City Planner or Noah Steele, Planning Services Director.  

 

Location:   3695 West 900 South  

Current Zoning:  R-2 

General Plan:   R-2  

Total Subdivision Area: 12.95 Acres 

 Number of Lots:  29 

 

 

Summary 

The applicant has requested approval of a 29-lot final plat called Legend Pointe. This name was 

changed from Hunter’s Glen which preliminary plat was previously approved by the Planning 

Commission. This will be the western-most phase of this subdivision and will fill in an 

undeveloped area surrounded by relatively new homes.  

 

While most of the staff comments were addressed in this iteration of the plat, some comments 

remain. 

 

Recommendation 

Because there are outstanding staff comments on the plat and the comments do not substantially 

change any parts of the plat, staff recommends it be conditionally approved.  

PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING  
April 2, 2019 



Suggested Motion Language 

 

Approval – “I move the Planning Commission recommend that the City Council approve the 

request of Nilson Homes for approval of a final subdivision plat called Legend Pointe Phase 1 at 

approximately 3695 West 900 South in the R-2 Zone with the following condition: 

1. All staff comments shall be addressed before the plat is recorded with Davis County. 

 

Table – “I move the Planning Commission continue the request of Nilson Homes for approval of 

a final subdivision plat called Legend Pointe Phase 1 at approximately 3695 West 900 South in 

the R-2 Zone until (give date) based on the following findings: 

1. (list findings)” 

 

Denial – “I move the Planning Commission recommend the City Council deny the request of 

Nilson Homes for approval of a final subdivision plat called Legend Pointe Phase 1 at 

approximately 3695 West 900 South in the R-2 Zone based on the following findings: 

1. (list findings).” 

 

Attachments: 

• Aerial Map 

• General Plan Map 

• Zoning Map 

• Plat 

• R-2 Zoning Ordinance 

• Staff Reviews   









Lot 804Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3 Lot 4 Lot 5

Lot 6
Lot 803

Lot 805 Lot 806 Lot 807 Lot 901

Lot 21 Lot 20 Lot 226 Lot 227 Lot 228 Lot 229 Lot 230 Lot 321

Lot 902 Lot 903 Lot 904 Lot 905 Lot 906 Lot 907

Lot 322 Lot 323 Lot 324 Lot 325 Lot 326 Lot 327 Lot 328 Lot 329



























R-2 ZONING ORDINANCE 

 

10.65.010 Purpose.  

The purpose of this zone is to provide for moderate density single-family residential 

development that conforms to the system of services available. 

 

10.65.020 Permitted uses.  

The following, and no others, are uses permitted by right provided the parcel and building meet 

all other provisions of this title and any other applicable ordinances of Syracuse City. 

 

(A) Accessory uses and buildings (200 square feet or less). 

 

(B) Agriculture. 

 

(C) Churches, synagogues, and temples. 

 

(D) Dwellings, single-family. 

 

(E) Educational services. 

 

(F) Household pets. 

 

(G) Minor home occupations. 

 

(H) Public and quasi-public buildings. 

 

(I) Public parks. 

 

(J) Rabbits and hens. 

 

(K) Residential facilities for persons with disabilities. 

 

(L) Vietnamese potbellied pigs. 

 

10.65.030 Conditional uses.  

The following, and no others, may be conditional uses permitted after application and approval 

as specified in SCC 10.20.080: 

 

(A) Accessory uses and buildings (greater than 200 square feet) (minor). 

 

(B) Apiaries (minor). 

 

(C) Day care centers (major). 

 

(D) Dwellings, accessory (major/minor, see SCC 10.30.020). 

 

(E) Dwelling groups (major). 

 

(F) Dog kennels (minor). 

 

(G) Home occupations (major). 

 



(H) Temporary commercial uses (see SCC 10.35.050) (minor). 

 

(I) Temporary use of buildings (see SCC 10.30.100(A)(12)) (minor).  

 

10.65.040 Minimum lot standards.  

All lots shall be developed and all structures and uses shall be placed on lots in accordance with 

the following standards: 

 

(A) Density: minimum lot size 10,000 square feet, but in no case shall the density exceed 3.0 lots 

per gross acre. 

 

(B) Lot width: 85 feet. 

 

(C) Front yard: 25 feet. 

 

(D) Side yards: eight feet (both sides). 

 

(E) Rear yard: 30 feet. 

 

(F) Building height: as allowed by current building code. 

 

(G) Variation of lot: the Land Use Authority may reduce the lot width requirement in particular 

cases when a property owner provides evidence they acquired the land in good faith and, by 

reason of size, shape, or other special condition(s) of the specific property, application of the lot 

width requirement would effectively prohibit or unreasonably restrict the ability to subdivide the 

property or a reduction of the lot width requirement would alleviate a clearly demonstrable 

hardship as distinguished from a special privilege sought by the applicant. The Land Use 

Authority shall approve no lot width reduction without a determination that: 

 

(1) The strict application of the lot width requirement would result in substantial hardship; 

 

(2) Adjacent properties do not share generally such a hardship and the property in question has 

unusual circumstances or conditions where literal enforcement of the requirements of the zone 

would result in severe hardship; 

 

(3) The granting of such reduction would not be of substantial detriment to adjacent property or 

influence negatively upon the intent of the zone; 

 

(4) The condition or situation of the property concerned or the intended use of the property is not 

of so general or recurring a nature as to detract from the intention or appearance of the zone as 

identified in the City’s general plan. 

 

10.65.050 Off-street parking and loading.  

Off-street parking and loading shall be provided as specified in Chapter 10.40 SCC. 

 

10.65.060 Signs.  

The signs permitted in this zone shall be those allowed in residential zones by Chapter 10.45 

SCC. 



 Final Subdivision Plan Review 
 

 

Mayor  
Mike Gailey 
 
City Council  
Corinne Bolduc 
Lisa Bingham 
David Maughan 
Jordan Savage 
Doug Peterson 
 
City Manager 
Brody Bovero  

 
 
 
 

 
 

  
3/29/2019 
 
Dear Applicant, 
 
The Syracuse City Community and Economic Development Department has conducted a review 
of the Hunter’s Glen Phase 1 Subdivision Final Plan for compliance with the city’s adopted land 
use ordinance. Please refer to the following table for items that require additional attention.  
  

1. Remove the Davis County parcel along the north edge of the property. 
2. Remove Plat note 4. The leftover Davis County Parcel will be rectified with the quit claim deed. 
3. Show addressing in accordance with the attached addressing list. Corner lots on 4000 West are 

not fully addressed. 

 
Please contact me with any questions concerning this project.  
 
Regards, 
 
Royce Davies 
City Planner 
(801) 614-9632 
rdavies@syracuseut.com 

mailto:rdavies@syracuseut.com


      1 

 

Syracuse City Public Works Department 

 

 

 

 

Legend Pointe Subdivision Phase 1 

910 South Street & 4000 South Street 
Engineer Final Plan Review 

Completed by Brian Bloemen on March 28, 2019 

Plans: 
 

1. Submit a letter from the Davis County Health Department stating the septic tank was properly removed 
and abandoned prior to recording. 

2. The proposed sewer connection in 4000 West is connecting to a North Davis Sewer District main. They 
shall be contacted for all connection approvals and standards.  Their existing main in 4000 West Street 
is a 36” not a 15” as shown and the District restricts tie in elevations.  It is recommended the District be 
contacted to verify connection standards. 

3. The minimum cross section in 4000 West Street is 4” of asphalt on 12” of base. 
4. Move the DVS-60S into 900 South Street between SD5 & SD3 north of the culinary main and south of 

the sewer main. 
5. Maximum land drain spacing between manholes is 400 feet. 

 
If you have any further comments or questions, please feel free to contact me at 801-614-9630. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Brian Bloemen, P.E. 
City Engineer 



  
 
TO: Community Development, Attention:  Noah Steele   
FROM: Jo Hamblin, Fire Marshal 
RE: Legend Pointe Subdivision Phase 1 
 
 
DATE:  March 28, 2019  
 
I have reviewed the plan for the above referenced project. Currently the Fire Prevention 
Division of this department does not have any concerns. 
  
These plans have been reviewed for Fire Department requirements only. Other 
departments must review these plans and will have their requirements.  This review by the 
Fire Department must not be construed as final approval from Syracuse City. 
 




